
Property / Regeneration Briefing  
 

Dear Member, 
 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Property / Regeneration Briefing to be held 
as follows for the transaction of the business indicated. 
Tom Stannard 

Chief Executive  

 
DATE: Monday, 23 January 2023 

 
TIME:  3.00 pm 

 
VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 

this meeting.  
 

AGENDA 

 
1   Apologies for absence  

 

 

2   Declarations of interest  

 

 

3   Items for Decision - Part 1 (Open to the Public)  

 

 

3a Pothole Action Fund 2022/23 and 2023/24  
 

(Pages 2 - 12) 

3b Crescent - Site Business Plan and Development Agreement for 

Salford Rise  
 

(Pages 13 - 20) 

4   Exclusion of the Public  

 

 

5   Items for Decision - Part 2 (Closed to the Public)  

 

No Items 

 

 

6   Any other business  

 

 

 
Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3013 

Mike Relph, Senior Democratic Services Advisor E-Mail: mike.relph@salford.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



 1 

   Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No. 
 

 

BRIEFING REPORT OF STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE 

 
TO 

PROPERTY & REGENERATION  
ON 23RD JANUARY 2023 

 

TITLE: POTHOLE ACTION FUND SCHEMES 2022/23 AND 2023/24 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 That the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development notes the 

proposed programmes of work for the Pothole Action Fund for 2022/23 as 
outlined in the report.  

 The report is then submitted through Property and Regeneration to City Mayor  

for briefing and approval.   
 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
Following the provision of the CRSTS funds, the remaining financial provision 

for the Pothole Action Fund  for 2022/23 is £698,000. The 2022/23 scheme 
proposals and proposed treatments are detailed in the background 
documents. 

 

 
 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
 

Appendix A -Pothole Action Fund Proposed Schemes 

Appendix B- Proposed Treatments 
 

 

 

KEY DECISION: Yes-this report will be presented to the City Mayor for briefing 

and approval 
 

 

Page 2

Agenda Item 3a



 2 

DETAILS: 
  
1.0 The Pothole Action Fund 
 

1.1 In February 2021, the Department for Transport allocated, through the GMCA 
funds from the Pothole Action Fund. The total amount for Greater Manchester 

has been established at £15,526,000. This has been distributed across the ten 
districts in accordance with the existing needs based formula. The pothole 
action fund is specifically for use on the carriageways.  

  
1.2 The carriageways listed in Appendix One have been identified for treatment 

from a number of sources. These are: 
  

 by highway inspectors who have identified defects in the carriageways 

during their scheduled safety inspection.  

 where the defects in the carriageways have been subject to requests for 

service by members of the public, neighbourhood managers and elected 
members.  

 actionable defects defined by risk assessment, that have been made safe, 

however there are adjacent areas of carriageway that require repair to 
prevent further deterioration. 

 areas that have been identified on other works programmes but are 
unlikely to be carried out due to higher priorities.  

 

1.3 The cost to undertake the type of work required on the streets identified would 
be prohibitive from the revenue budget. This is because the areas requiring 

replacement are greater than localised repairs that would be usually 
authorised by the Highway Inspector, in accordance with the Highway 

Inspection and Repair Code of Practice. Nevertheless, work is required to 
repair the areas identified on the streets, in order to ensure that the highway is 
safe and serviceable. 

 

1.4 The schemes listed in Appendix One exceed the allocated amount and 

schemes from 2021/22 have been included along with additional streets 
identified. Those schemes that are not completed and any new proposals shall 
be included in future works programmes should further pothole action fund 

allocations be forthcoming. 

 

1.5 Salford City Council is already following  the HMEP (Highway Maintenance 
Efficiency Programme) principles by undertaking planned preventative and 
cost -effective repairs in its works programmes. Those principles shall 

continue with this programme of works. 
 

1.6 Continuing with the HMEP principles, along with conventional repair 
processes,  where appropriate, innovative and sustainable repair processes 
and materials shall also be used. These processes are identified in Appendix 

Two.   

Page 3



 3 

1.7 Where any actionable defects are noted within any cycle ways situated within 
the carriageways along the routes listed in Appendix One, these shall be 
repaired in accordance with the specified treatment identified in Appendix Two 

determined for that road. 
 

1.8 Where appropriate and subject to future available funds, the carriageways that 

have been repaired shall be included in a future surface treatment 

programme. This will seek to seal and protect the surface from deterioration 

thus further prolonging the in- service life and improve overall network 

condition. 

 

1.9 Construction Services is seeking to carry out some of the patching works in 

house. This will commence with hand-lay works identified within the pothole 

action fund. Going forward, it is anticipated that there shall be less reliance on 

such works to be carried out by contractors and therefore internal delivery 

shall increase. 

 

1.20 The future internal delivery shall rely on an expanding workforce and it is the 

intention of the Operational Manager to employ local people, train them and 

provide them with the skills to undertake works in the future. 

  

1.21 As stated, the starting point will be hand-lay  works undertaken by internal 

construction services staff which will then be developed. 

 

1.22  A breakdown of the cost of the proposed pothole action fund works is as 

shown in Table 1 and 2 below. 

 

Work Element (£) Total (£) 

   

Pothole Action Fund 2022/23   

Direct Works Cost     £585,276    

Depot Overheads (19.26%) £112,724 
 

 
 

 

   

                                                  

Scheme Delivery Cost  £698,000 

   

   

Total Budget for programme  £698,000 

Table 1 Breakdown of costs carriageway patching and repairs 

 

 

 

 

Page 4



 4 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  
Enhancing Life in Salford, Think Efficiency, Improving the Environment, 
Tackling Poverty and Inequality, Skills and Education, Creating an Economy 
for all 

 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 
The scheme proposals as outlined have been made in an attempt to ensure the 
continued safe movement of the travelling public.  The budget proposals and 
apportionments are not intended to be discriminatory. The works being 

undertaken will have a positive impact on all equality groups. By planning and 
programming work around religious holidays we can enhance good relations 

with the affected communities in a positive way.  
 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  
Low – The targeted spend of available funding will ensure that the City Council’s 
statutory obligations are met while at the same time facilitating continuous 

improvement of the highway infrastructure. 

 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323 

and Azra Furheen 
 

Date: 18th November 2022 
 
Section 41 of the Highways Act 1980 places the Highway Authority under a duty to 

maintain a highway, and maintenance is therefore a statutory requirement. 
 

The proposals in the report for highway maintenance, once finalised scheme details 
within each of the specified categories of work have been submitted, will strengthen 
the Council’s position in defending 3rd party highway/tripping claims. Whilst it is legally 

accepted that it is not possible to maintain the highway completely free of all defects, 
section 58 of the Highways Act 1980 provides a possible defence to a claim if it can 

adequately show that there was a sufficiently robust regime in place to inspect and 
maintain the highway provided it is adequately carried out and the Council had no prior 
knowledge of the defect before an alleged incident. 

 
Once works have been carried out in accordance with the schemes referred to the 

Council will be better placed to either repudiate more third party claims entirely or 
reduce the level of damages payable should settlement be deemed appropriate. 

 

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or works the 
City Council must comply with the requirements of the Public Contracts Regulations 

2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders and Financial Regulations. Third 

Page 5



 5 

party contractors may be instructed to carry out such works directly, or via the Council’s 
framework agreement for Civil and Highways Engineering, and depending on the value 
of those commissions, will  be subject to approvals from Strategic director or 

Procurement Board. 

 

 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
Supplied by: Alison Woods, Interim Commercial Finance Manager 
 

Date: 17th November 2022 

 
The aforementioned expenditure of £0.698m, will be met from the CRSTS Highways 

Core Maintenance capital grant funding allocation, which has been received for the 
2022/23 financial year. 
 

Implications of the proposed expenditure in respect of the Innovate Programme have 
been fully considered. 

 
All expenditure should be closely monitored to ensure that these works are delivered 
within the allocated resources. 

 
Expenditure code: D07091 

 

 
 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Heather Stanton, Category 

Manager Tel: 6241 

 
Date 16th November 2022 

 
This is a statutory requirement. We now have in place the SCC Technical and 
Highways Works Framework which could be utilised to tender for these works as a 

further competition.  The Technical and Highways Works Framework is compliant 
with PCR’s 2015 and SCC standing orders. 

 
As part of the Council’s Innovate program and budget challenges over the next three 
years, the service group should consider efficiencies and enhanced contract 

management KPI’s as part of this procurement activity. 
 

 
 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 
 

Page 6



 6 

 

 
 

 
 
 
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Michael Hemingway  

 
Improved highways will contribute to the reduction of congestion and reduce carbon 

emissions from standing traffic. The use of recycled and sustainable materials along 
with carbon friendly manufacturing processes in road maintenance products will also 
contribute to carbon saving measures. 

 
 

 

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  
 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: Steve Mangan TEL NO:  603 4034 

 
 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: ALL 
 

Page 7



Appendix One Pothole Action Fund Proposed Schemes (not in any priority order) 

Any schemes not completed will roll over into the next financial year or may be included in the 

Highway Investment Programme or where applicable the Key Route Network Programme 

 

Street Name Neighbourhood Area Ward 

 

A580 (East Lancashire Rd) 

Claremont & Weaste Claremont  

Swinton Swinton Park  

Worsley & Boothstown Worsley & Westwood Park  

Churchfield Road Claremont & Weaste Claremont  

Rivington Road Claremont & Weaste Claremont  

Queen Street Claremont & Weaste Claremont  

Cholmondeley Road Claremont & Weaste Claremont  

Bolton Road, I-O-T-H Claremont &Weaste Claremont  

Radcliffe Park Road Claremont & Weaste Claremont  

Manor Road Claremont & Weaste Claremont  

Tootal Drive Claremont & Weaste Weaste & Seedley  

Tootal Road Claremont & Weaste Weaste & Seedley  

Meadowgate Road Claremont & Weaste Weaste & Seedley  

Brotherton Drive East Salford Blackfriars & Trinity  

Enville Road East Salford Claremont  

Littleton Road East Salford Kersal & Broughton Park  

Northumberland St East Salford Kersal & Broughton Park  

Westfield Street East Salford Kersal & Broughton Park  

Cavendish Road East Salford Kersal & Broughton Park  

Okever Road East Salford Kersal & Broughton Park  

Wallness Lane East Salford Pendleton & Charlestown  

Corporation Road Eccles Barton & Winton  

Guilford Road Eccles Barton & Winton  

Liverpool Road Eccles Barton & Winton  

Barton Road Eccles Barton & Winton  

Pine Grove Eccles Eccles   

St Georges Crescent Eccles Eccles   

Hampden Grove Eccles Eccles   

Foxhill Road  Eccles Higher Irlam & Peel Green  

Haddon Road Eccles Higher Irlam & Peel Green  

    

Cadishead Way/C Circle Irlam & Cadishead Cadishead & Lower Irlam  

Vicarage Road Irlam & Cadishead Cadishead & Lower Irlam  

Roscoe Road Jnc Liverpool Rd Irlam & Cadishead Cadishead & Lower Irlam  

Cutnook Lane Irlam & Cadishead Higher Irlam & Peel Green  

Parkstone Road Irlam & Cadishead Higher Irlam & Peel Green  

Merlin Road Irlam & Cadishead Higher Irlam & Peel Green  

Page 8



Westwood Avenue Little Hulton & Walkden Little Hulton  

Old Lane Little Hulton & Walkden Little Hulton  

Green Avenue Little Hulton & Walkden Little Hulton  

Calder Drive Little Hulton & Walkden Little Hulton  

Manchester Road West Little Hulton & Walkden Little Hulton  

Cleggs Lane Little Hulton & Walkden Walkden North  

Portland Road Little Hulton & Walkden Walkden North  

Tynesbank/Parsonage Rd Little Hulton & Walkden Walkden South  

Bridgewater Road Little Hulton & Walkden Walkden South  

Chapelfield Drive Little Hulton & Walkden Walkden South  

Walter Street Little Hulton & Walkden Walkden South  

Walkden Road Little Hulton & Walkden Walkden South  

Pinfold Road Little Hulton & Walkden Walkden South  

Eccles Old Road Ordsall &Langworthy Pendleton & Charlestown  

West Egerton Street Ordsall &Langworthy Ordsall  

Fitzwarren Street Ordsall &Langworthy Weaste & Seedley  

Chiltern Drive Swinton & Pendlebury Swinton Park  

Manchester Road Swinton & Pendlebury Swinton Park  

Lawnswood Drive Swinton &Pendlebury Swinton Park  

Deans Road Swinton & Pendlebury Swinton & Wardley  

Cromwell Road Swinton & Pendlebury Swinton & Wardley  

Sindsley Road Swinton & Pendlebury Swinton & Wardley  

Ellesmere Street  Swinton & Pendlebury Swinton & Wardley  

Mulgrave Street Swinton & Pendlebury  Swinton & Wardley  

Roe Green Worsley & Boothstown Boothstown &Ellenbrook  

Ellenbrook Road Worsley & Boothstown Boothstown &Ellenbrook  

Rands Clough Drive Worsley & Boothstown Boothstown &Ellenbrook  

Vicars Hall Gardens Worsley & Boothstown Boothstown &Ellenbrook  

Beechwood Drive Worsley & Boothstown Worsley & Westwood Park  

Houghton Lane Worsley & Boothstown Worsley & Westwood Park  

Moorfield Close Worsley & Boothstown Worsley & Westwood Park  

Walker Road Worsley & Boothstown Worsley & Westwood Park  

 

Page 9



Carriageway Patching 2021/22 Potential Treatment Types 

There are a number of innovative and sustainable patching repair processes and 

materials available. Some of these are seasonal some can only be used where the 

deterioration is not too severe.  

Where appropriate in consultation with suppliers it is intended that some of these 

processes shall be used. 

 

1 High Pressure Jet Patching 

 

                                          

                                                                              

  Before                                                                        After 

1. High-velocity air is used to remove all dust and debris from the defect. 

2. A cold bitumen emulsion is forced into every crack and crevice, sealing the defect and 

protecting it by preventing the ingress of water. 

3. The aggregate mix is fired at high velocity through the delivery hose, evenly coating the 

granules with bitumen emulsion. 

Page 10



Note: the new material is keyed into the existing road surface. Compaction levels are better 

than conventional material due to the layer by layer compaction from the bottom up, not top 

down. 

As heat is not involved in the repair, this greener method involves exceptionally low CO2 

emissions. The process produces minimal waste material and causes no further damage to 

the road base. 

Suitable for rural and urban roads, the system can be adapted for repairs to potholes, edge 

deterioration, depressions, cracking, crazing and extending the life of worn conventional 

repairs. 

The process isn’t just used to remove defects, as it is an excellent preventative tool to halt 

road surface deterioration. 

The Velocity team will work alone, once they know which roads need repairing. Due to the 

speed of the process, road closures are not required in  

 

2 Planing and Patching 

Certain areas will require conventional solutions. In these sites, the only solution will be to 

undertake planing and patching. This process will involve the removal of up to 100mm 

thickness of existing worn macadam layers and replacement with new macadam layers with 

sealed joints. 

       

 

 

 

   

 

Page 11



 
 

  

 

Page 12



 Part 1 ITEM NO. 

 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR, PLACE

 

TO PROPERTY AND REGENERATION BRIEFING  

FOR DECISION ON 23RD January 2023

 

TITLE: Crescent – Site Business Plan and Development Agreement for Salford Rise

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

That the Deputy City Mayor: 
 

1. Notes the content of this report;  

2. Provides delegated authority for the Strategic Director, Place, and the Assistant 

Director, Regeneration, to approve the Site Business Plan for Salford Rise, and agree 

the relevant conditions associated with the approval with the English Cities Fund and 

the University of Salford to enable the project to be brought forward for delivery;  

3. Provides delegated authority for the Strategic Director, Place, City Solicitor, Chief 

Finance Officer and the Assistant Director, Regeneration, to enter into a Development 

Agreement with ECF and negotiate all financial, commercial and contractual 

documents and arrangements with ECF associated with the delivery of the Salford 

Rise project; and 

4. Authorises the City Solicitor to enter into and complete all necessary agreements or 

documents to give effect to the above recommendations. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

In April 2021 the Council approved the Strategic Master Programme and Delivery Plan 
(SMPDP) for the Crescent. This approval resulted in the Overarching Umbrella Agreement 
(OUA) between the Council, ECF and University of Salford, becoming unconditional and taking 
full effect, providing ECF with the contractual certainty needed to begin the process of 
preparing Site Business Plans (SBP’s) for the various sites across the Crescent area.  
 
A Site Business Plan has now been submitted to the Council and University for the Salford 
Rise project, which sits within the Crescent Innovation Zone. This report provides an overview 
of the content of the SBP and recommends that the Council approves the Site Business Plan.  
 
This report also seeks approval for the Council to enter into a Development Agreement with 
ECF as Salford Rise relates to delivery of a key piece of infrastructure on Council owned land, 
rather than development on a site which would be drawn down by ECF. In this instance, ECF 
will therefore be appointed as Development Manager for Salford Rise, rather than Developer 
and the Development Agreement will set out the terms of this arrangement.  
 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  

Page 13

Agenda Item 3b



- Report of the Strategic Director, Place, to Property and Regeneration Briefing 

(Approval of the Crescent Development Framework 2021), 25th January 2021. 

- Report of the Strategic Director, Place, to Property and Regeneration Briefing 

(Approval of the Crescent Strategic Master Programme and Delivery Plan), 26th April 

2021. 

- Report of the Strategic Director, Place, to Property and Regeneration Briefing 

(Salford Rise – Approval to enter into a Grant Funding Agreement with English Cities 

Fund), 28th March 2022.

 

KEY DECISION: YES  

The Strategic Master Programme and Delivery Plan relates to the area covered by the 

Crescent Development Framework which includes sites within 4 wards (Blackfriars and Trinity, 

Broughton, Ordsall and Pendleton and Charlestown). However, the Salford Rise site itself sits 

solely within the Pendleton and Charlestown ward. 

DETAILS: 

1.0  Background 
   

1.1  In March 2020 the City Council and University appointed the English Cities Fund as 
Private Sector Partner to deliver the Crescent Masterplan and all parties subsequently 
signed the Overarching Umbrella Agreement (OUA) – the main contract between the 
parties to manage implementation of the Crescent masterplan. The Umbrella 
Agreement is currently conditional upon: 
 

(i) ECF preparing and submitting a new planning framework for the Crescent 
area. The new Crescent Development Framework was approved by the 
Council in January 2021 satisfying this condition. 

(ii) The approval of the Strategic Master Programme and Delivery Plan 
(SMPDP) to demonstrate how the programme will be brought forward over 
the next 10 years and beyond. The SMPDP, was approved in April 2021.  

 
   
1.2  Approval of the SMPDP resulted in the OUA becoming unconditional and taking full 

effect, triggering a requirement for ECF to submit a Site Business Plans (SBP’s) for a 
site within the Crescent area. A SBP has now been submitted for the Salford Rise 
project, which sits within the Crescent Innovation Zone.  

   
1.3  The Crescent Development Framework was approved by the Council in January 2021 

and set out the vision to create a new Innovation Zone which would provide space for 
collaboration between the world leading research at the University and industries of 
the future. The vision for the Innovation Zone included a key objective to remove the 
Frederick Road barrier which divides the Innovation Zone in two through the 
development of a major piece of infrastructure which would provide a new podium 
connection over Frederick Road along with new areas of public realm – this is the 
project now known as Salford Rise. 

   
1.4  The Council submitted a Levelling Up Fund bid to Government for delivery of Salford 

Rise in June 2021 and received notification that the bid was successful in late October 
2021, alongside confirmation that the full amount of funding requested had been 
awarded - £13.17m. Approval to enter into a Grant Funding Agreement with ECF was 
secured at Property and Regeneration Briefing on 28th March 2022. 

Page 14



   
1.5  ECF were jointly appointed as developer partner for the Crescent by the Council and 

University in March 2020. ECF will manage the Salford Rise project (under a 
Development Management role) and appoint the various consultants and contractors 
required to deliver the project. ECF are highly experienced in managing and delivering 
projects of a similar nature to Salford Rise, as evidenced from their portfolio of projects 
across the UK.  

   
2.0  Overview of the Site Business Plan 
   

2.1  SBPs are comprehensive documents that provide clarity to the partners about the 
delivery of development projects. In order to be able to submit the SBP’s ECF need to 
complete a significant amount of work, funded at their own risk. The OUA sets out the 
submission requirements for SBP’s, requiring ECF to submit a suite of documents 
covering matters including: 
 

 Pre-planning application and the formal Planning Authority response to the pre-
application consultation in writing; 

 The Development Proposals for the site; 

 Details of funding and funding strategy; 

 A development and delivery programme; and 

 Demonstration the proposed approach is consistent with the SMPDP, is 
deliverable and does not adversely affect development proposals for the 
residue of the masterplan development zones. 

   

2.2  The above documentation has now been submitted by ECF. Having regard to the 
evolution of documentation submitted and detailed discussions with ECF that have 
taken place to date, and having now reviewed the full suite of documents submitted as 
part of the SBP, officers are satisfied that it meets the requirements for approval set 
out within the OUA. The submission and development proposals are also in line with 
the provisions of both the SMPDP and Crescent Development Framework.   

   
3.0  Contractual Arrangements 
   

3.1  The Council has secured £13,170,933 funding from the Government’s Levelling Up 
Fund for the delivery of Salford Rise. The Council will effectively act as a conduit 
between Government and ECF for the funding to deliver Salford Rise, while 
maintaining oversight of progress with the project via established governance 
arrangements for the wider Crescent programme. In order to transfer the Levelling Up 
Funding to ECF, a Grant Funding Agreement is required between the Council and 
approval to enter into this agreement was secured at Property and Regeneration 
Briefing on 28th March 2022. 

   

3.2  The Grant Funding Agreement between the Council and ECF will mirror the 
requirements for delivery of the project, as set out in the MOU between DLUHC and 
the Council and will include appropriate provisions to ensure that the Council is not put 
in a position of being in breach of the MOU.  

   

3.3  The OUA sets out the mechanisms by which ECF will work with the partners to deliver 
development across the Crescent area. It sets out in detail the approach to ECF 
drawing down sites for residential and commercial development and associated profit 
levels for ECF in adopting a ‘developer’ role in such instances. In the case of Salford 
Rise, this is an unusual project in that ECF will not be taking on any land or property 
interest in the Council owned land to be occupied by Salford Rise. Furthermore, the 
funding arrangements are such that the Council will remain as the owner. Therefore, 
in accordance with the provisions within the OUA, ECF will not be acting as a 

Page 15



‘Developer’ in the case of Salford Rise but Development Manager. This role requires 
a separate Development Management agreement between the City Council and ECF, 
although it will follow the key principles which are contained within the OUA, including 
commercial terms. ECF’s Development Management fee has already been included 
within the secured Levelling Up Funding, so does not result in any additional cost to 
the Council. 

   

3.4  To mitigate potential project overspend, ECF and their design team and main 
contractor for the project have undertaken detailed design work, involving some 
amendments to the scheme to enable it to be delivered in phases, to ensure costs are 
in line with the funding secured through the Levelling Up Fund, while still achieving the 
required project outcomes set out within the MOU between the Council and DHLUC. 
The risk of price over-run during the construction phase will be managed by ECF 
entering into a fixed price D&B contract. ECF have a detailed risk register in place and 
officers from the Development team meet with ECF on a bi-weekly basis to review 
progress with the project. Any cost overrun will be met by ECF in the first instance and 
recovered at a future date as Global Development Costs.   

   

3.5  This report therefore seeks delegated approval for the Strategic Director, Place, City 
Solicitor, Chief Finance Officer and the Assistant Director, Regeneration, to enter into 
this Development Agreement with ECF and negotiate all financial, commercial and 
contractual documents and arrangements with ECF associated with the delivery of the 
Salford Rise project. 

   
4.0  Conclusion and next steps 

   
4.1  Having reviewed the full suite of documents submitted as part of the SBP for Salford 

Rise, officers are satisfied that it meets the requirements for approval set out within 
the OUA. The submission and development proposals are also in line with the 
provisions of both the SMPDP and Crescent Development Framework. 

   
4.2  In light of the wide range of benefits to the Council in delivering Salford Rise, it is 

recommended that the Site Business Plan is approved and that the Council enter into 
a Development Agreement with ECF to manage delivery of this important project. 

   
5.0  RECOMMENDATIONS: 

   
5.1  That the Deputy City Mayor: 

 
1. Notes the content of this report;  
2. Provides delegated authority for the Strategic Director, Place, and the Assistant 

Director, Regeneration, to approve the Site Business Plan for Salford Rise, and 
agree the relevant conditions associated with the approval with the English 
Cities Fund and the University of Salford to enable the project to be brought 
forward for delivery;  

3. Provides delegated authority for the Strategic Director, Place, City Solicitor, 
Chief Finance Officer and the Assistant Director, Regeneration, to enter into a 
Development Agreement with ECF and negotiate all financial (including cost 
management), commercial and contractual documents and arrangements with 
ECF associated with the delivery of the Salford Rise project; and 

4. Authorises the City Solicitor to enter into and complete all necessary 
agreements or documents to give effect to the above recommendations. 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

Page 16



 City of Salford Unitary Development Plan 2004 – 2016: Saved Policies 

 City of Salford Publication Local Plan 

 Crescent Development Framework (January 2021) 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  

Proposals for Salford Rise and the  wider Crescent Innovation Zone were set out in the 

Crescent Development Framework, which was approved by the Council in January 2021. A 

Community Impact Assessment of the Development Framework has previously been 

prepared and was approved at Property and Regeneration Briefing, alongside the 

Development Framework, in January 2021.    

 

SOCIAL VALUE:  

The SMPDP contained a detailed, site specific Social Value Strategy for the Crescent area 

and the SBP social value strategy has been informed by this. The SMPDP contains a 

commitment for planning applications across the Crescent area to be accompanied by a Social 

Value statement. The planning application for Salford Rise included a Social Value Statement 

and Action Plan, setting out the English Cities Fund commitments to work with the construction 

partner for Salford Rise to maximise social value through delivery of the project. Both the 

development and skills and work teams will engage with both ECF and its contractors with a 

view to maximising social value from all development across the Crescent area, including 

Salford Rise. Social Value Portal will monitor and report on progress on behalf of the partners. 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  Low 

Certainty of Levelling Up Fund grant award from Government to Salford City Council (Low) 

The Levelling Up Fund is awarded from DHLUC to  Local Authorities via a Memorandum of 

Understanding as opposed to a normal  grant funding agreement. We understand that MOUs 

are  not legally binding documents. There is a risk that whilst the Council is providing certainty 

to ECF of £13.17m of grant to finance the delivery and management of the Salford Rise 

project, there is a risk that Government could terminate the Levelling Up Fund programme and 

grant awarded to Salford City Council. The impact would be the Council would still need to 

provide ECF with the necessary value of finance to deliver the project.  

However, given that the Levelling Up Fund is a very high profile Government programme, it is 

considered that the likelihood of the programme being unexpectedly closed down and funding 

withdrawn is low 

Compliance with terms and conditions of Levelling Up Fund to negate breach (Low) 

In addition to the terms and conditions set out in the MOU, Government have issued an 

assurance framework to all local authorities linked to Levelling Up Fund grants to ensure 

compliance with the terms of the MOU and to monitor progress. Through the framework, the 

first line of assurance sits with the recipient authorities Section 151 officer. For the Salford 

Rise project and award of LUF, this assurance requires completion of a Statement of Grant 

Usage form, which is reviewed and signed off by the Section 151 officer following written 

Page 17



updates and briefings presented by officers within Regeneration. This is then submitted to the 

Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities for review. The Council submitted its 

completed Statement of Grant Usage on 16th November 2022.

 

Legal Implications: Supplied by Lauren Armstrong 

Date provided: 30th September 2022 

The Shared Legal Service has previously advised on the MOU between the Council and the 

Department for Levelling Up.  

The purpose of the grant funding agreement and development agreements with ECF will be 

to flow down/back to back the Council’s obligations under the MOU onto ECF. In particular, 

the MOU sets out key delivery and reporting requirements, which the Council will be reliant 

upon ECF to meet. The grant funding agreement and development agreement will also need 

to include any Council/project specific requirements in connection with the forward funding. 

Where appropriate, the grant funding agreement and development agreement should 

complement/align with any other relevant project documents (such as the Umbrella 

Agreement or any other existing ECF appointment).  

Shared Legal Services is working with Council officers and ECF to agree final versions of both 

agreements and will continue to support and advise the team on all contractual aspects of this 

project to facilitate delivery, mitigate risks where possible and ensure compliance with all 

relevant law. 

 

Financial Implications: Supplied by Natalie Birchall 

Date provided: 29th September 2022 

The council have successfully secured a levelling up grant £13.170m, which must be spent by 

March 2025. The fund is being administered via a Memorandum and Understanding (MOU) 

which was signed on the 8th February. Approval to enter into a grant funding agreement with 

ECF for the provision of onward funding to a maximum sum of £13,710,933 was secured at 

Property and Regeneration Briefing on 28th March 2022.  

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by Deborah Derbyshire 

Date provided: 29th September 2022 

English Cities Fund (the Council’s procured developer partner for the Crescent area) were 

appointed following a competitive dialogue procurement exercise. The proposals detailed in 

this report do not have any direct procurement implications for the Council as ECF will be 

undertaking all procurement associated with delivery of the Salford Rise project.  

 

HR IMPLICATIONS: No comments have been sought on HR implications.  

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by Dan Welsh 

Page 18



A site-specific Sustainability Strategy has been prepared for the overall Crescent area and 

this has informed the sustainability measures that will form part of the project.

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  

ECF have already secured planning permission for Salford Rise. The proposals have been 

informed by both the approved Crescent Development Framework and approved overarching 

Strategic Master Programme and Delivery Plan for the Crescent, both of these documents 

involved liaison with and input from a range of teams across the Council. Ward Councillors 

have also been briefed on the Salford Rise project. 

 

CONTACT OFFICERS:  EMAIL:  

Kurt Partington Kurt.Partington@salford.gov.uk  

Dan Welsh  Daniel.welsh@salford.gov.uk  

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  

The Salford Rise site itself sits solely within the Pendleton and Charlestown ward. However, 

the Strategic Master Programme and Delivery Plan relates to the area covered by the 

Crescent Development Framework which includes sites within 4 wards (Blackfriars and Trinity, 

Broughton, Ordsall and Pendleton and Charlestown. 

Page 19

mailto:Kurt.Partington@salford.gov.uk
mailto:Daniel.welsh@salford.gov.uk


 

Page 20


	Agenda
	3a Pothole Action Fund 2022/23 and 2023/24
	03aii Appendix A Pothole Action Fund Proposed Schemes
	03aiii Appendix B Proposed Treatments

	3b Crescent - Site Business Plan and Development Agreement for Salford Rise

